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:..wearrived attbe^p^atialmidence of tfie
»• ''■t'Weahhiestman in the coim^^.EJon&i. It stands

on a very prominent lidlam^n.be seen for
Bv/ miles, either way. At a distant it could be readily
Wi^,ftakenfor an old Scotch castle.... It is a magnificent
^ ' structure, and we could convey no'possible idea

,/o/its beauty with less than halfa column of
^L^descriptive writing of the highest order.... *
|t Strong City Independent, OctoberjlS, 1881

The grand four-level ranch house forms
the centerpiece of the Spring Hill Farm
and Stock Ranch. Completed in 1881, it
stands as a beautiful example of French
Second Empire architecture, a style
popular in tiie late 19th century.

This large, stately home is also an example
of great change in the American West, the
transition from small ranches on the vast
open range to large enclosed ranching
businesses, laying the foundations for the
present-day American cattle industry.

Ranch House Tour
Introduction

Born in Tennessee on November 6,1826, Stephen
F. Jones, his wife Louisa, born in Georgia on
January 6,1833, and daughter Loutle, born in
1871 as the youngest of five children, came to
Kansas in August 1878 to start a cattle ranch in the
Flint Hills, building on success found in the cattle,
business while living in Texas and Colorado from
the 1850s through the 1870s. The ranch house,
built with native limestone, faces east, making a
dramatic first impression. The French Second
Empire style of architecture was very popular in
the 1870s and 1880s, with many public buildings,
like the Chase County Courthouse, and other large
homes sharing the style. This architectural style is
notable for the mansard roof enclosing the upper
story with dormers and projecting gables, as well as
stone cornices, brackets, and quoins adding to the
elegance of the style.

Constructing the fou r-level, eleven room ranch
house cost $25,000 and, according to local records,
took 20 men working night and day to complete

the home. In fact, so much aaivity ocairred during
construction that travelers often thought they had
reached Strong City, Kansas, two miles to the south,
and would try to find a room for the night.

Jones came to Kansas with $100,000 to use in
building the Spring Hill Farrh and Stock Ranch,
named for the many springs he found on the
property. He eventually acquired 7,000 acres of
land and built over 30 miles of limestone fences to
enclose the ranch.

Lithograph of the Spring Hill Fartn and Stock Ranch,
ca. 1887.

Begin Tour Here,
Formal Entry and Parlors

(Tour begins downstairs in the formal entry
area of the ranch house.)

The formal entry and two parlor rooms were the
most elegantly decorated areas in the entire ranch
house. The large formal entry doors, ornate walnut
staircase custom-built for the house, and tall foyer
add to the grand feel of the space. The parlor
furnishings were donated to the preserve in 1995.
None of the original furnishings survive to the
present. However, the mantelpieces in both parlors,
as well as the baseboards, the woodwork with faux
walnut paint finish, the doors and windows and
associated hardware like handles and doorknobs.

and most of the plaster crown molding still survive
and can be found throughout much of the house.

The parlors were used for both formal and more
casual gatherings. A newspaper reporter visiting the
ranch in 1882 described the house as "one of the
most elegantly furnished" in eastern Kansas, adding
that "the house is richly furnished throughout, the
floors arc all laid with velvet and Brussels carpets,
while large and costly mirrors and an ample
supply of appropriate furniture for the various
rooms convince the visitor that rare good taste was
employed in the selection."

Walnut Staircase and
Original Wood Flooring

With only minor modifications, the elegant walnut
staircase remains as it was when installed in the
1880s. It was custom built for this house off
site, then assembled when the house was under
construction from 1880 to 1881. Each of its
98 balusters was hand carved individually. The
banister, consisting of 17 separate, hand-carved
pieces of walnut, was assembled with the aid of

Roman numerals on the underside of each piece.
Also, please note the original pine floorboards on
the staircase landing, Most of the original pine
flooring in the house was replaced in the 20th
century and is now covered in oak flooring.

(Continue tour by climbing the short set of
stairs and entering the space to the left.)




